CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - OCTOBER 8, 2020

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on October 8, 2020, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the
Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Ron Taylor, Chairman
Randy Roland, Vice Chairman
Ken Southard, Commissioner
Stephen Springs, Commissioner
Joe Costantino, Commissioner
Gary Beach, Commissioner
Michael Keller, Commissioner

MEMBERS ABSENT: Gwen Walraven, Commissioner

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Michael Spicer, Director — Development Services
Sam Chavez, Assistant Director — Dev. Services — Planning
Cidnee McCutchen — Administrative Clerk

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff
regarding staff reports and agenda items. No action was taken.

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING

1. Approval of Minutes of the regular business meeting on September 15, 2020.

Motion: Commissioner Southard made a motion to approve the minutes as amended;
second by Commissioner Costantino. Motion passed 7-0.

PUBLIC HEARING

2. Zoning File 20-17 — PD Planned Development — DDA4 Distribution Center: Consider an
act on a request from PD Planned Development for I-M (1) Industrial District to PD Planned
Development for I-M (1) Industrial District with modified development standards to

accommodate a 141,360 square foot distribution center. Property Owner: Douglas R. Otte.
Staff: Sam Chavez.

Mr. Chavez stated that the subject property is 33 acres in size and is located at the southeast
corner of Breckenridge Boulevard and Shiloh Road. It is zoned as a Planned Development for
the I-M(1) Industrial District. The applicant is requesting to amend the zoning on the subject
property to a Planned Development for the I-M(1) industrial district with modified
development standards to accommodate the development of a 141,360 square foot, single-story
building for a distribution center.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 8, 2020 2

The proposed building is a single-story building with a height of 44 feet, 6 inches. A truck
court is proposed on the east side of the building with fifteen (15) truck docks and thirteen (13)
trailer storage spaces.

There will be a total of 1,147 parking spaces; 452 passenger vehicle spaces with the balance
for delivery vehicles. A van loading and staging area with 144 spots is located on the north
side of the building underneath and adjacent to the canopy for loading and staging operations.

The Zoning Concept Plan provides landscape buffers along Shiloh Road, Breckenridge
Boulevard and Research Drive. The Conceptual Landscape Plan indicates a total of 139
canopy trees within the landscape buffers and 127 parking lot canopy trees. The landscape
buffer along the east property line consists of buffering/screening with a double row of
evergreen shrubs and trees.

The applicant submitted a Traffic Impact Analysis as part of the application which identified
that a traffic signal was warranted at the intersection of Shiloh Road and Breckenridge
Boulevard. The cost of the signal will be covered by the applicant and is listed as a condition
in the staff report including internal signage requirements for directing delivery vehicles.

In summary; the applicant is proposing to rezone the property to Planned Development for the
[-M(1) Industrial District which allows office, warehouse, manufacturing, outdoor storage
(accessory), distribution center uses, increase the maximum building height for a one-story
building from 25 feet to 50 feet and to redefine a distribution center.

Mr. Chavez concluded his presentation stating the applicant would provide a presentation and
make himself available for any questions from the Commission.

With no questions for staff, Chairman Taylor opened the public hearing.

Public Comments

Douglas Otte, Seefried Properties, 3030 LBJ Freeway, Dallas, Texas presented a PowerPoint
presentation on the request outlining the proposed development related to traffic generation
and intended construction of a traffic signal at the intersection of Shiloh Road and Breckinridge
Boulevard, the operational aspects of the van fleet, cost of investment, number of jobs created
and positive meetings with the area neighborhood (Creek Hollow).

Vice-Chairman Roland asked; if until the fleet is all electrical, do the fleet vehicles just idle
while in the staging area or loading area.

Mr. Otte stated with Amazon wanting to be carbon neutral by 2040, the vehicles are turned off
during the staging and loading process.

Commissioner Beach asked for clarification on the location of the office portion on the
building and location of the loading and truck court and impacts those would have on the
residential neighborhood.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 8, 2020 3

Mr. Otte stated the office portion is located on the west side of the building, with the loading
area located on the north side of building and the truck court located on the east end of the
building. The Creek Hollow neighborhood is located approximately 1,500-1,700 feet from the
truck court and based on our noise study, there was no increased noise impact.

With no further public input, Chairman Taylor closed the public hearing and asked for a
motion.

Motion: Commissioner Springs made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File
20-17; second by Commissioner Keller. Motion passed 7-0.

3. Zoning File 20-12 — PD Planned Development — Main Street/Central Expressway Code
Amendments (continued from the September 15, 2020 CPC meeting): Consider and act on a
request to amend regulations related to legal, nonconforming uses for properties formerly
zoned I-M (1) Industrial that are now located within the Railside, Creative Corporate, and
Centennial Green sub-districts of the Main Street/Central Expressway Form Based Code
Planned Development zoning district. Applicant: City of Richardson. Staff: Michael Spicer.

Mr. Spicer stated this item was continued from the September 15" meeting to allow staff to
provide the Commission with additional information, including building data, permitted usage
information, comparison data of the three sub-districts and the Industrial District, and specific
amendment options for the Commission to consider.

He continued the presentation with describing the framing parameters, existing nonconforming
use regulations, uses under consideration, amendment options and potential Commission
actions.

Mr. Spicer concluded his presentation and made himself available for questions.

Vice-Chairman Roland asked for clarification on the 6-month time frame for a non-conforming
use.

Mr. Spicer stated that currently as written, a non-conforming use could replace another similar
non-forming use in the exact lease space within the stated 6-month time frame, however, after
the 6-month time frame, the lease space would lose its non-conforming rights.
Vice-Chairman Roland stated the when looking at the options to move the time frame from 6
month or less or more, we would need to consider whether the amended time frame was the
right amount of time.

Mr. Spicer stated yes.

Mr. Keller stated there were discussions about property owners who had asked for changes in
the past and asked how many property owners had come forward.

Mr. Spicer stated he met with many interested parties involving dozens of meetings.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 8, 2020 4

Mr. Keller asked if he had any idea of how many of the specific sites were interested in
changing the perimeters.

Mr. Spicer stated one of the pieces of correspondence received was for the property that has
10 buildings and from those in attendance this evening but could not affirm the number of lease
spaces for the area.

Commissioner Costantino (inaudible)

Commissioner Beach stated based on the options presented, how would we go about this.
Right now, I would be in favor of Item (1)-Option A, Item (2)-Option A; Items 3 and 4 are not
applicable, Item (5)-Option B and Item (6) with 18 months.

With no further questions of staff, Chairman Taylor opened the public hearing.

Public Comments

The following individuals spoke in favor of the application:
- Bill Dahlstrom, 2323 Ross Avenue, Dallas, Texas representing PS Business Parks, stated

they did not want any outside storage or motor vehicle use and were in favor of the Sunset
provision if it were long-term sunset provision.

- David Vickers, 3201 Gary Drive, Plano, Texas, representing PS Business Park
- Linda Hardcastle, 605 S. Sherman Street, Richardson, Texas, Property Manager
- Zed Conrad, 307 Woodcrest Drive, Richardson, Texas

With no further public comment, Chairman Taylor closed the public hearing and asked if there
was any additional discussion from the Commission.

Commissioner Costantino stated the plan is to look at the bullet points and discuss whether we
should modify them.

Commissioner Springs stated he agrees with expanding in the building; and fine with doing
minor things to the envelope of the building, but not changing the building footprint.

Commissioner Keller stated he agrees with Commissioner Springs. How does it work in the
abstract; since it is difficult when doing something on a wholesale basis. Personally, it
becomes more complex.

Commissioner Beach stated he is in line with Commissioner Keller; but it needs to come in on
a one-off basis; and not a wholesale allowance. Expanding internally is fine, don’t see a
problem but it needs to have a sunset clause.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 8, 2020 5

Vice-Chairman Roland stated it is important to forward recommendations to Council with what
they are seeking to change. We have staff that wants to know what to tell the owners when
they want to come to the City of Richardson do certain things. We are trying to define for the
future what we want to see. Ms. Hardcastle’s comment regarding that the area was built for
office/warehousing, however, US-75 wasn’t there when it was built, DART wasn’t there when
it was built so things change and now the highest and best use for that area has been established.
We are setting the vision. He is an advocate for it to be the most flexible for the Council.

Commissioner Costantino asked Vice Chairman Roland what he meant by flexible in terms of
the recommendation to City Council.

Vice-Chairman Roland stated flexibility that would allow the City Council to consider more
restrictive parameters if need be.

Commissioner Springs stated it was the Commission’s job to get into the details which is what
the Council is looking for from the Commission. He asked for a clarification on minor and
major modifications of the West Spring Valley PD and the subject Code.

Mr. Spicer stated the West Spring Valley PD was more restrictive regarding minor
modifications compared to the subject Code. The subject Code provides a limited list of items
allowed as minor modifications, other than those, they would fall under a Special Development
Plan. For example, you could expand a non-conforming structure 15% percent providing you
are expanding towards the street to gain more proximity to the street because it aspires to a
form-based purpose.

Commissioner Springs asked staff it is related to the envelope.

Mr. Spicer stated no. The approach was to allow for uses as benign as possible. That’s why
we didn’t want to touch the exterior of the building. For example, adding another loading dock
door would add to the outdoor activity associated with that use and the potential impact on the
surrounding properties, which we may be defeating our long-term purpose in deferring the
achievement of the goal. Staff’s approach was to listen to what property owners were saying.
The buildings that are involved are primarily multi-tenant, tilt wall and commercial flex space
buildings. The buildings that are most impacted are very similar regardless of the location in
terms of sensitivity of existing land uses. So, there was enough commonality for us to
consolidate what could potentially be any number of one-off zoning cases in a manner that
would be consistent. We wanted to keep it internal, keep it within benign uses and minimize
how much to allow without compromising the ultimate vision.

Commissioner Springs stated he hopes is that the Commission can proceed through things in
an orderly fashion and develop a consensus. He could foresee a sunset conversation in different
ways, and we could not have that conversation until we go through those items on their own
merits.

Chairman Taylor commended Mr. Spicer for capturing the essence of the matter, trying to
balance the economic interest of property owners and property managers against the ultimate
vision of the City and how we can make accommodations to get there.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 8, 2020 6

Commissioner Southard stated would be in favor of Item (1)-Option A, and Item (2)-Option
A; however, the timing provision may be getting too much into detail to discuss 6 months or 9
months. If they want to have flexibility there, his preference is having the provision for intent
that must be administered by someone in Development Services to pass judgement on.

Commissioner Beach asked should we take a vote, or do we need further discussion?

Commissioner Springs asked; for example, if I had one conforming use, am I grandfathered
for any non-conforming use in my building.

Mr. Spicer stated yes, if you stay true to the list that was provided.
Commissioner Springs asked is it per building or property.
Mr. Spicer stated it is per building.

Commissioner Springs stated that was interesting in the case for someone who owns ten
buildings.

Mr. Spicer stated the point is how do we advance the ball on the interest of the stake holders
without compromising the vision. If you have a building today with a legal non-conforming
use, then keep it within the building’s footprint or if you have three buildings on your property
with no legal non-conforming uses, then you are already on the path to conformance and we
want to keep it that way. That has been our approach from a staff level.

Commissioner Springs stated he is leery about allowing all uses because you have one
nonconforming use. I feel that whichever nonconforming use(s) you have those are the ones
you get to work with.

Chairman Taylor asked why Commissioner Springs sees that as a restriction.

Commissioner Springs stated it goes back to the yin and yang of it; are we pushing more for
the vision or accommodation, it’s a tough line.

Commissioner Costantino stated that kind of wraps up Items (2) and (3). If you have the use,
whenever this amendment is rolled out, you are entitled to be grandfathered for that use for
that building until some sunset provision is established.

Commissioner Beach stated he understands what Commissioner Costantino was saying, but if
you have a building that has ten suites and one of them has a catering service and they want to
expand it to two or three suites, he did not see anything wrong with that.

Commissioner Costantino stated that is not the provision he was referring to.

Commissioner Beach stated ok, so he has a catering business this week and next week he wants
to make it into an automobile garage.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 8, 2020 7

Commissioner Costantino stated what he wants to know is whether that is permissible. If we
want to encourage conformance; if they allow them to do that, then there is no incentive.

Commissioner Beach stated the sunset component would get them to conform. They will go
ahead and let them make money for whatever duration is picked, then it would all go back to
zero and then we would have to reconsider the time frame.

Chairman Taylor stated that it would be providing some owners and property managers
comfort and assistance during whatever the sunset period is.

Commissioner Beach stated he agreed.

Vice Chairman Roland asked under that provision would you then allow them to switch
between non-conforming.

Mr. Spicer reminded the Commission that none of those uses are on the table.

Vice Chairman Roland stated if you establish a 5 year sunset, do you then allow the space to
be filled with whatever non-conforming use or do you keep the stipulations where non-
conforming goes away then you cannot go back to non-conforming.

Commissioner Beach stated the uses under consideration; even though they are non-
conforming, if it is going to help drive revenue, I do not see it as an issue.

Commissioner Springs agreed and stated there may be different sunsets established as we move
through these items because he may not be in favor of one with some sort of sunset. That
might mean we go through them once and we come back and check the boxes and make sure
we agree.

Chairman Taylor stated I will take a straw poll on the amendments at this time, starting with
amendment Item (1).

Commissioner Southard stated Item (1)-Option A with a five year or less sunset provision.
Commissioner Springs stated Item (1)-Option A with longer than a 5-year sunset.
Commissioner Costantino stated Item (1)-Option A with some sort of sunset provision.

Commissioner Beach stated Item (1)-Option A with a lengthy sunset.
Chairman Taylor stated Item (1)-Option A with a lengthy sunset.

Vice Chairman Roland asked for clarification on longer than a 5-year sunset.
Commissioner Springs stated he would be in favor of a sunset of 7 to 10 years.

Chairman Taylor motioned to table the sunset discussion.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 8, 2020 8

Commissioner Keller stated Item (1)-Option A with a sunset.

Chairman Roland moved onto amendment Item (2).

Commissioner Southard stated Item (2)-Option A.

Commissioner Springs stated Item (2)-Option A.

Commissioner Costantino stated Item (2)-Option A.

Commissioner Beach stated Item (2)-Option A.

Chairman Taylor stated Item (2)-Option A.

Vice-Chairman Roland stated Item (2)-Option A.

Commissioner Keller stated Item (2)-Option A.

Chairman Taylor moved onto amendment Item (3) which is not applicable
Chairman Taylor moved onto amendment Item (4) which is not applicable.
Chairman Taylor moved on to amendment Item (5).

Commissioner Southard stated he was not in favor of Item (5)-Option A as it seems to go
against reaching conformance.

Commissioner Springs asked for an example of the application of Item (5)-Option A.

Mr. Spicer stated as an example, having a building with four spaces in it, and one of the spaces
was occupied with a non-conforming use and that non-conforming use goes away and runs out
of their time to replace the occupied space with a non-conforming use. In that instance you
will not be able to put any non-conforming uses back in the building.

Commissioner Costantino (inaudible)

Mr. Spicer stated that this one was difficult for council; but yes, you could go have the
multiplier effect. A building that has one tenant who has a non-conforming use, and it has four
spaces that could have four non-conforming uses at some point. Since we are allowing for
flexibility internally, we didn’t want to allow the external features to be modified. It keeps the
existing building configuration intact; hence no impact on surrounding properties.

Commissioner Springs stated he would be in favor of Item (5) only to the extent that it is
facilitating the expansion allowed by Item (2). You’re not letting a perpetually non-
conforming rotation occur in the building. An existing use within the building could become
non-conforming because of a neighbor expanding into it.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 8, 2020 9

Mr. Spicer reiterated Commissioner Springs comments. Expansion of existing nonconforming
units, but not the introductions into non-conforming uses.

Commissioner Springs stated he would want to make sure not to accept an option that is
conflicting with another one. He would be in favor of Item (5) but it must be the continuance
of an existing non-conforming use, not a new one.

Mr. Spicer asked Commissioner Springs if he would allow for the expansion of an existing
non-conforming use into a conforming space.

Commissioner Springs stated yes.

Vice-Chairman Roland asked Commissioner Springs if he means he is in favor of Item (5)-
Option B and not Item (5)-Option A.

Commissioner Springs stated he is against Item (5) unless it jeopardizes Item (2).
Vice- Chairman Roland stated he does not think it does.

Commissioner Springs stated he is in favor of Item (5)-Option B.

Commissioner Southard stated he in favor of Item (5)-Option B.

Commissioner Costantino stated Items (5) and (6) are tied together. In terms of property owner
relief, these are probably two of the most significant ones. We should give someone the ability
to put a non-conforming use in a space or provided some sort of relief in terms of the time that
they can have to replace it. He favors a provision that Item (6) stays where it is. That means
that you have no other uses in the building on a building level not a space level. If we have a
space with a caterer, no one else can move into that building and become a caterer. He is in
favor of Item (5)-Option A. Basically, if the space 1s abandoned, they have six months to get
someone back in there, but it is on a lease space level. Can put anybody in that space who is
non-conforming use or am I stating that correctly.

Mr. Spicer stated that there must be at least one non-conforming lease in the building. So yes,
expanding the options for a multi-tenant.

Commissioner Costantino stated he is in favor of Item (5)-Option A but will be a little less
inclined to be for a change in Item (6).

Chairman Taylor asked if the focus on Item (6) was more so about timing.

Mr. Spicer stated that it is simply the amount of time you would have after a vacancy of a non-
conforming space to be filled by another non-conforming space. Otherwise it would have to
be a conforming use, thus applicable to a building as opposed to an individual space.

Commissioner Springs asked if they had a caterer in the building can they bring in another
caterer or is the rule that the first caterer can only expand.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
October 8, 2020 10
Mr. Spicer asked if he was asking as currently provided for or as proposed.

Commissioner Springs stated the question was about the proposal, Item (2). If they are
expanding the lease space, is the tenant expanding or the use expanding.

Mr. Spicer stated if we are talking about an existing non-conforming use wanting to expand,
then the caterer can expand into a current space, but you cannot include a separate caterer.

Commissioner Springs stated he was reading it the other way around as a use.
Commissioner Costantino (inaudible)

Mr. Spicer stated well you could when it is vacant.

Commissioner Costantino (inaudible)

Mr. Spicer stated that Commissioner Costantino brought up a good point. If he has an existing
non-conforming use that is a caterer, you would like to use that as an option but not if you were
a plumbing contractor.

Commissioner Springs stated that is correct, because that is the same use. What’s the difference
if it were one caterer or two caterers.

Mr. Spicer stated that is another way of looking at it, but you would be talking about a separate
business and separate owner creating a new non-conforming use. It would be the same use but
as a separate non-conforming use.

Commissioner Springs stated he was thinking of an expansion within the building, not
necessarily tying it to a tenant expansion.

Vice Chairman Roland stated if it was a 1,000 square foot caterer and if they wanted to expand
to 15,000 square feet that they could do that, but I was not thinking that another tenant could
establish a new catering business. [ see your point. The term “use” should be changed to
expansion of square footage of a non-conforming use to clarify what we are talking about.

Commissioner Springs stated he would not be opposed to any of those scenarios.

Mr. Spicer stated it was certainly within the Commission’s purview.

Commissioner Beach (inaudible)

Commissioner Springs stated [ would allow the tenant of a same use such as allowing a separate
caterer to operate in the same building but would not endorse allowing a different use in the
building.

Mr. Spicer stated that is where we are trying to strike the balance. It’s hard for the stakeholder

if they are replacing the non-conforming use that vacates with the very same non-conforming
use. That is the driving force that it is too limiting for them.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 8, 2020 11

Commissioner Springs stated he thinks Commissioner Costantino had an insightful
observation about Items (5) and (6). He agrees with his comments that we should be flexible
on one or the other, but not both. He would be more restrictive with Item (5) and be more
flexible on the timeline on Item (6).

Commissioner Costantino (inaudible)

Commissioner Beach stated that Items (5) and (6) are intertwined. He would favor Item (5)-
Option B when you have something that is conforming, you don’t want to go backwards.
Along with that, the time for abandonment should be 16 to 18 months especially in the COVID

era. There are a lot of dynamics happening and does not see it as unreasonable.

Chairman Taylor stated he is in favor of Item (5)-Option A and would go with a maximum of
18 months.

Vice Chairman Roland stated currently we have non-conforming tenants all over the city and
asked if the time frame was generally 6 months or did it vary.

Mr. Spicer stated it is universally 6 months.

Vice Chairman Roland stated he is in favor of Item (5)-Option A with the normal 6-month
time frame.

Commissioner Keller stated he is favor of Item (5)-Option B with a 9 or 12-month time frame.
Vice Chairman Roland stated that the Commission has consensus on Item (2)-Option A, Item
(2)-Option A and needs to make a motion for Item (5) and Item (6). Most of the Commission
concurs with Item (5)-Option B with an increased time frame.

Commissioner Springs stated after listening to everyone’s deliberations he would be willing to
give on either but not both meaning more flexibility in a use within a shorter timeline not longer

than 18 months.

Chairman Taylor asked Commissioner Springs if that was Item (5)-Option A with a 9-month
time frame.

Commissioner Springs stated he would be in favor of Item (5)-Option A with a 9-year time
frame and Option (6).

Chairman Taylor stated he could support that.
Vice Chairman Roland stated that we now have Item (5)-Option A with a 9-month time frame.
If a motion is to be made for consideration, it would include Item (1)-Option A, Item (2)-

Option A and Item (5)-Option A with Item (6) with a 9-month time frame.

Commissioner Costantino asked if we still have 4 sunsets conceivably.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
October 8, 2020 12

Mr. Spicer stated that he would encourage the Commission to choose a sunset universally.

Chairman Taylor stated he agreed and asked Commissioner Springs how he feels about a
sunset.

Commissioner Springs stated in effect we have already created two sunsets, one is 9-months
and asked what was decided on for Item (1). We were talking about timeline on one... I guess
we must wait on that. I think that is the key one.

Commissioner Beach stated I don’t think we set anything up to be a sunset and we have agreed
to extend the time to 9 months. This is something that is changing over time and if in five
years if we find something is not working the way we want it to we can revisit the issue. We
need to set up some sort of sunset in that fashion. I would suggest 5 years or 60 months.

Vice Chairman Roland stated Item (2)-Option A does not need a sunset because we are just
allowing the expansion of a non-conforming use. On Item (5)-Option A we were allowing
conforming use to convert from a non-conforming use provided a non-conforming use
occupies the same building. So, we have Item (1) a non-conforming use should be changed
only to a use conforming to the requirements of a subdistrict, but we chose Option A to allow
changes from one non-conforming use to a different non-conforming use. If we were going to
establish a sunset time frame Item (1) would be the one. We heard that the market is going to
dictate so if we do all the other things right in these subgroups, the market will dictate or get
rid of the non-conforming use themselves, but is it five, ten, or fifteen years. We may not need
to do anything.

Commissioner Costantino stated Items (1) and (5) would probably need a sunset to encourage
the vision. Both of those are going to cap non-conforming uses that are new. He is fine with
expanding internally and vacated to nine months. He feels that ten years is a good swing. He
thinks buildings are financed about ten years. He feels we would be negligent in our duty if 5
years from now City Council needs us to address this again.

Commissioner Springs stated he was thinking similarly. Items (1) and (5) should be the ones
we put a sunset on. If the market knows they have a 10-year window they are going to make
different decisions rather than giving them nothing to react to. In the summary from the last
meeting, if we are amending the Code in all these ways, we would not want to leave language
referenced in the Code that states “non-conforming uses are declared to be incompatible with
the Subdistrict” because what we are doing is kind of against the proposed language. He would
propose; that wherever it says that in the Code, to state “incompatible in the long term with the
Subdistrict”.

Mr. Spicer stated if we are looking to amend this, then incorporate something that speaks to
that part of the amending ordinance and it would be exclusive to these three subdistricts and
we can always put some qualifying remarks such as whereas and therefore etc.

Commissioner Springs stated that Mr. Spicer captured the spirit of what he was saying. You
do not want the Code to contradict itself.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
October 8, 2020 13

Mr. Spicer stated we are talking about a surgical amendment. We are not amending 5 of the 8
Subdistricts which will remain intact.

Vice Chairman Roland stated if they are no other comments, he would like to make a motion
and asked how he should read the items off in a way that is best for the record.

Mr. Spicer said if he wants to read it as (1)A or (2)A that is fine.

Motion: Vice-Chairman Roland made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File
20-12 in accordance with Options (1)A with a 10-Year Sunset, (2)A; (5)A with
a 10-Year Sunset and (6)A with a 9-Month Time Limit; second by Chairman
Taylor. Motion passed 7-0.

Adjourn
With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Taylor adjourned the regular

business meeting at 9:30 p.m.

Ron Taylor, Vice Chairman





